
CITY COUNCIL BUSINESS MEETING AGENDA 

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL 

JANUARY 6, 2014 

6:30 P.M. 

  

                                                                              

 1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 2.  ROLL CALL / INVOCATION / Rabbi Donald Kunstadt / Springhill Avenue Temple 

 

 3.  APPROVE MINUTES:    Council meeting minutes / December 16, 2013 ....................................................4  

 

PRESENTATION: Presentation of service weapon for Detective James Matthews ..........................................11 

                                                    

4. REPORT STANDING COMMITTEES: 
A. FINANCE COMMITTEE - Conaway  

B. BUILDINGS & PROPERTY  COMMITTEE -  Davis  

         Review minutes / December 2, 2013 .........................................................................................................13 

 

C. PUBLIC SAFETY -  Rudicell     

         Review minutes / December 11, 2013 .......................................................................................................16 

 

D. CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  -  Scott     

E. PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY – LeJeune 

a.) Review minutes / December 16, 2013 .....................................................................................................21 

b.) Beautification Committee minutes / December 20, 2013 ........................................................................23 

c.) Environmental Advisory Committee minutes /  November 18, 2013 .....................................................24 

 

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  
   A.  Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones 

   B.  Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway 

         Review minutes / December 4, 2013 ............................................................................................................26 

 

   C.  Industrial Development Board – Davis 

Need one member 

 

   D.  Library Board - Lake  

E. Planning Commission – Scott  

Review minutes / November 21, 2013 ..........................................................................................................28 

 

   F.  Recreation Board - LeJeune 
   G. Utility Board - Fry    

 

 

6.  REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

     A.  Mayors Report      
           a.)  Special Events Permit / S.E.E.D.S. Mama Mia Cook Off / November 1, 2014 ...................................40 

 

     B.  City Attorney’s Report 

     C.  Department Head Comments 

     D.  City Clerk Report 

           MOTION: 90 day moratorium on issuance of new sign permits. 

               



 COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA  

 JANUARY 6, 2014 

 PAGE 2 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:   

 

 

8. RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

 

   

  RESOLUTIONS: 

a.) Resolution 2014-01: Acceptance of Right-of-Way and  

Maintenance for the Extension of Profit Drive, North of Johnson Road ......................................................42 

 

 ORDINANCES:         

 

NO ORDINANCES TO CONSIDER 
 

 

 9.    COUNCIL COMMENTS        

10.  ADJOURN 
 



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

CITY COUNCIL: 

 

COUNCILWOMAN CONAWAY    PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN RUDICELL     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN LAKE     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN LEJEUNE     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN DAVIS     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCIL PRESIDENT FRY    PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

MAYOR: 

MAYOR HAYGOOD     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

CITY CLERK: 

REBECCA HAYES      PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 

JAY ROSS       PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

3



DECEMBER 16, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

 
 

P
ag

e1
 

1.    CALL TO ORDER:  

Council President Fry called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.       

 

2.    ROLL CALL/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

Pastor Bart Hare with the Bay Community Church gave the invocation. 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:    

Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron Scott; Robin LeJeune; Joe Davis. 

 

Also present:  Mayor Haygood; Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Sarah Toulson, Assistant City Clerk; 

Kevin Boucher, City Attorney; James White, Fire Chief; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center 

Director; David McKelroy, Recreation Director; Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; 

Adrienne Jones, Community Development Director; Mike Hinson, Finance Director; Tonja 

Young, Library Director; Captain Scott Taylor, Police Department; Willie Robison, BZA; Larry 

Cooke, BZA; Dorothy Morrison, Beautification Committee and DRA; Al Guarisco, village Point 

Foundation; Andy Rutens, Attorney (AMIC) Galloway, Wettermark. 

 

Absent: Vickie Hinman, HR Director; Michael Hoyt, Municipal Judge; Richard Merchant, 

Building Official; David Carpenter, Police Chief; Jay Ross, City Attorney. 

 

3.    APPROVE MINUTES: 

December 2, 2013 Council meeting minutes 

There being no corrections the December 2, 2013 council meeting minutes stand approved as 

written. 

 

December 9, 2013 Council Work Session Minutes 

There being no corrections the December 9, 2013 Council Work Session minutes stand approved 

as written. 

 

December 9, 2013 Strategic Plan minutes 

There being no corrections the December 9, 2013 Strategic Plan minutes stand approved as 

written. 

 

 

4.    REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

      A.   FINANCE COMMITTEE – Conaway 

The minutes for the December 9
th
 meeting are in the packet. 

 

Treasurers Report / October 31, 2013 and November 30, 2013 
Balance ending October 31, 2013 was $16,069,377, and the balance ending November 30, 2013 

was $16,449,485. 

 

4



DECEMBER 16, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

 
 

P
ag

e2
 

Sales and Use Tax Collections / October 31, 2013 

Sales and Use Tax collections for October 2013 were $1,062,861. 

 

Lodging Tax Collections / October 31, 2013 

Lodging Tax collections ending October  2013 were $48,382.05. 

 

      B.   BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE -  Davis 

The committee met December 2
nd

, and the minutes will be in the next packet.  They considered 

three items:  1.)  update on the Civic Center energy program; 2.) inventory of city owned 

buildings and property, and properties named after individuals; 3.)  third party organizations the 

city works with in understanding their by-laws, memberships and council participation. 

 

      C.   PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE – Rudicell  

The next meeting will be January 8, 2014 at 4:30 p.m. 

 

      D.   CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE – Scott 

The minutes for the December 11
th
 meeting are in the packet.  There is a proposed ordinance 

revising the Employee Handbook on the agenda tonight as a 1
st
 read.  The committee will be 

discussing an ordinance amending the current Lodging Tax ordinance and a Community 

Contribution Guidelines ordinance at the January meeting. 

 

      E.   PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE – LeJeune 

The committee met before the council meeting, and the minutes will be in the next packet.  There 

were 20 new residential customers added, and these are new members of the community.  The 

next meeting will be Tuesday, January 21, 2014. 

 

 

5.    REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMITTSIONS: 

      A.   Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones 

The minutes for the December 5
th
 meeting are in the packet, and there will not meeting in 

January.   

   

      B.   Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway 

The Authority met on December 23
rd

, and the next meeting will be January 21, 2014. 

 

      C.   Industrial Development Board – Davis 

The board will not meet in December. The chairman, vice chairman and council liaison are 

having meetings with other agencies in the industrial development segment such as the Baldwin 

County Economic Development Alliance, and will be able to report both to the IDB and council 

at the end of January. 

 

 

5



DECEMBER 16, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

 
 

P
ag

e3
 

      D.   Library Board – Lake 

No report.   

 

      E.   Planning Commission – Scott 

The next meeting will be Thursday at 5:00 p.m. 

 

    F.   Recreation Board – LeJeune 

No report. 

 

   G.   Utility Board – Fry 

The October 30
th
 minutes are in the packet.  There will not be a meeting in December.  The next 

meeting will be in January. 

 

6.    REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

       A.  Mayor’s Report 

Mayor Haygood reminded council that January 6
th

 is the BCS Championship game, and asked if 

they wanted to consider rescheduling that meeting date. 

 

      B.  City Attorney’s Report 

Mr. Boucher requested an Executive Session at the end of the meeting to consider a settlement 

proposal for Federal Litigation regarding Lamar. 

 

     C.   Department Head Comments 

James White – Fire Chief – reported they had overwhelming support on their Toys for Tots 

campaign. 

 

Scott Taylor – Captain, Police Department – reported the four new officers have finished their 

training, and are on the road now as officers. 

 

Margret Thigpen – Civic Center Director -  reported there will  be a Gospel Concert January 9-

11, 2014. 

 

Tonja Young – Library Director – reported Santa will be at the Library Thursday 4:00 – 6:00 

p.m. 

 

Richard Johnson – Public Works Director - reported City Hall will be closed December 24
th

 

and 25
th

 and the makeup days will be the following Thursday, December 26
th
, and the same for 

New Years day, pickup will be following the holiday. There will be no construction in Lake 

Forest over Christmas. 

 

City Clerk Report – Rebecca Hayes –   

1.  Motion to change the January 20, 2014 council meeting due to Martin Luther King Day. 

6



DECEMBER 16, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

 
 

P
ag

e4
 

MOTION BY Davis to reschedule the Monday, January 20, 2014 Council Meeting to 

Tuesday, January 21, 2014 6:30 p.m.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

                                          MOTION  CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

2. Motion:  Appoint Treasurer 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to appoint Mr. Mike Hinson, Finance Director, as 

Treasurer.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

                                             MOTION  CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

  

7.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Mr. Willie Robison – 560 Stuart Street – encouraged all to get out to vote tomorrow on the 

replacement for Congressman Joe Bonner. 

 

Mr. Rod Drummond – 367 Ridgewood Drive – spoke regarding the executive session on digital 

signs and is against signs on US 98, because of traffic congestion. 

 

Mr. Al Guarisco – 1205 Randall Avenue – said ditto for Mr. Drummond’s comments. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to enter into Executive Session, upon certification by the 

City Attorney, to consider pending litigation.  Time not to exceed 30 minutes.  Seconded by 

Councilman LeJeune. 

 

Kevin Boucher, City Attorney, certified that the foregoing stated reason to enter into 

executive session is appropriate according to the Open Meetings Act. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

Conaway  Aye    LeJeune  Aye 

Rudicell  Aye    Davis   Aye 

Lake   Nay    Fry   Aye 

Scott   Aye 

 

AYE    Conaway, Rudicell, Scott, LeJeune, Davis, Fry               NAY    Lake 

 

                                                      MOTION CARRIED 

 

Council entered into Executive Session at 6:50 p.m. 

 

7



DECEMBER 16, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

 
 

P
ag

e5
 

Mr. Boucher announced at 7:20 p.m. that the Executive Session would last another 10 

minutes. 

 

Council returned from Executive Session at 7:30 p.m. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake not to accept the settlement offer by Lamar.  Seconded by 

Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

Conaway  Aye    LeJeune  Nay 

Rudicell  Nay    Davis   Nay 

Lake   Aye    Fry   Nay 

Scott   Nay 

 

AYE    Conaway, Lake   NAY    Rudicell, Scott, LeJeune, Davis, Fry 

 

                                                           MOTION FAILS 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to accept the corrected settlement offer from Lamar 

presented by the city’s attorneys, and to authorize the city attorney to enter into the 

corrected settlement agreement.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

Conaway  Nay    LeJeune  Aye 

Rudicell  Aye    Davis   Aye 

Lake   Nay    Fry   Aye 

Scott   Aye 

 

AYE    Rudicell, Scott, LeJeune, Davis, Fry  NAY    Conaway, Lake 

 

                                                          MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

8.    RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

         

       RESOLUTIONS: 

No resolutions to consider. 

 

 

 

8



DECEMBER 16, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

 
 

P
ag

e6
 

       ORDINANCES: 

 

       1
ST 

READ  

a.)  Amend and Reorganize Chapters One and Ten 

      of the City’s Employee Handbook. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2013-65 

 

ORDINANCE 2013-65 WAS MADE 1
ST

 READ 

 

 

9.    COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
Councilwoman Conaway asked everyone to remember the reason for the season, and wished everyone a 

merry Christmas. 
 

Councilman Rudicell said ditto to Mrs. Conaway’s comments, and asked everyone to take a few minutes 

to remember servicemen and women. 
 

Councilman Scott wished everyone a merry Christmas and happy New Year.  He thanked the 

staff for the Christmas parade and for all the employee’s hard work.  He thanked Public Works 

for doing a lot of paving at the Bayfront, and he thanked the council for their professionalism. 

 

Councilman LeJeune wished everyone a merry Christmas and a happy New Year. 

 

Councilman Davis wished everyone a merry Christmas and happy New Year.  He is thankful for 

the freedom to participate in the holidays.  He said the Watershed Work Group meeting was very 

informative.  He said the new list for best housing market came out and Daphne, Fairhope and 

Foley were still in the top ten.   

 

Mayor Haygood thanked council for their service last year, and that everyone has taken the best 

interest of the citizens into account.  He believes the settlement with Lamar is the best settlement 

opportunity. He encouraged everyone to vote tomorrow.  He wished everyone a merry Christmas 

and happy New Year. 

 

Council President Fry wished everyone a merry Christmas and happy New Year.  He 

congratulated Mike Hinson on becoming the Treasurer for the city, and he encouraged everyone 

to vote tomorrow. 
 
 

10.   ADJOURN: 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilman Rudicell. 

 

                                    MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

9



DECEMBER 16, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

 
 

P
ag

e7
 

 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS, THE MEETING ADJOURNED AT 

7:54 P.M. 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,                                       Certification of Presiding Officer, 

         

                                                     

__________________________________  ________________________________  

Rebecca A. Hayes,      Randy Fry,  

City Clerk                                Council President    

   

10



11



 

 

 

REPORT  

OF  

STANDING COMMITTEES 

12



Buildings & Property Committee Meeting 
 

Monday, December 2, 2013 
5:30 PM 

Daphne City Hall- Mayor’s Conference Room 
 
 

Committee Minutes 
NO QUORUM 

 
 

Present: Councilman Joe Davis, Sarah Toulson (Recording Secretary), Councilman Randy Fry, 
Richard Johnson, Mike Hinson, David McKelroy, Richard Merchant, Margaret Thigpen, Selena 
Vaughn (Village Point Foundation), Mayor Dane Haygood, Councilman John Lake 
 
Absent: Rick Whitehead, Councilman Pat Rudicell 
 
There was not a quorum of members present, but the committee discussed the 

following. 

1. Public Participation 

Chairman Davis opened the floor for public participation at 5:31 pm.  He mentioned Selena 

Vaughn’s discussion with the Committee at the November 2013 meeting regarding the Village 

Point Foundation, and gave her the floor to speak. 

Ms. Vaughn told the committee that she would like to discuss the process of getting Village Point 

Foundation projects and funding approved through the B&P committee.  She proposed that the 

VPF should have a permanent place on the agenda beginning in January, citing the need for 

collaboration between the VPF and the City Council.   

Mr. Fry requested that Ms. Vaughn prepare a list of the VPF’s priorities for the committee’s 

consideration. 

Additional discussion was held regarding the merits of a Council representative attending VPF 

meetings versus a VPF member holding a permanent place on the committee’s agenda.  Though 

no formal action was taken, the committee was agreeable to a liaison between the two groups. 

Old Business 

2. Approval of minutes: November 4, 2013 

Minutes were reviewed but not approved due to lack of quorum. 

  

3. Resolution for Surplus Property: Mike Hinson  

 

Mr. Mike Hinson presented the proposed Resolution to Declare Certain Property Surplus, 

but no formal action was taken. 

13



 

Mr. David McKelroy addressed the committee regarding the proper disposal of unsafe 

bleachers no longer in use by the City Department of Parks and Recreation.  He provided 

photographs depicting the new replacement bleachers and the bleachers in need of disposal.  

His question for the committee was whether the bleachers should be sold as surplus or sold 

for scrap metal. 

 

Mr. Richard Johnson noted that past efforts on behalf of the City to dispose of property by 

way of salvage were very successful.  The committee took no formal action, but a general 

consensus concluded that the committee would vote to dispose of the bleachers by salvage at 

the next meeting. 

 

4. Civic Center & Bayfront report (November): Margaret Thigpen 

Margaret Thigpen distributed and discussed her reports.  November 2013 revenue totaled 
$15,835.00, slightly over November 2012 levels.  Year to Date revenues stood at $30,976.50, 
below figures listed for FY 2012.  During the month of November $11,673.00 was deposited, 
including one cancellation. 
 
Ms. Thigpen listed a number of upcoming events scheduled at the Civic Center, including the 
Baldwin County Youth Orchestra on December 9 and the Holiday Baldwin Pops on 
December 10.   Additionally, she mentioned that all but ten days of the month of December 
are booked at the Civic Center, and two are holidays. 
 
 
Ms. Thigpen then turned to Bayfront Pavilion, reporting revenues for November totaling 
$5,335.00 (a decrease from November 2012 levels), with year-to-date revenues totaling 
$13,672.00 (an overall increase from FY 2012). 
 
As an additional update, Ms. Thigpen mentioned that the air wall for the Civic Center would 
be ready for installation on January 7th or 8th, and would allow for the division of one room 
into two “break out” rooms for conferences. 

 

5. Building inspection monthly reports (November):  Richard Merchant 

Richard Merchant reported that nine new construction projects had been started, with 112 
permits filed during November. Total job cost was $9,813,171.12 with permit fees totaling 
$63,174.75.  He noted that his department noticed a transition in permits trending away 
from remodeling toward new construction. 
 

6. Update: Civic Center energy program 

Mayor Haygood and Mr. Hinson reported that they had recently met with representatives of 

Syntergy.  Both of them feel the City has been overbilled by approximately $20,000.  They 

are discussing some arrangements with Syntergy to favorably work out this discrepancy, 

which may include additional discounts and a new contract for city hall.  Ms. Thigpen 

mentioned existing HVAC problems at the Civic Center, and described ways in which 

Syntergy or a similar company would rectify these concerns. 

 

14



7. Inventory of buildings and properties with official names 

Mr. Richard Johnson addressed the group, stating the requested information was in the 

process of being gathered.  He stated that it would be available to the committee at the next 

meeting. 

Mr. John Lake suggested the addition of any available narrative about the significance of the 

individual for which a property was named.  Mr. Davis requested that Mr. Lake record any 

histories he remembers about different building names for inclusion.   

New Business 

8. Third party organizations 

Mr. Davis asked Ms. Vaughn to provide the committee with information regarding the VPF, 

including tax status, membership, charter and by-laws. 

The committee discussed third party organizations such as the VPF in general, how to best 

work with these groups to get out the city’s message and use them as a community asset. 

 

9. Any other Buildings & Property business 

Mr. Hinson addressed the committee to discuss the issue of the placement of a window in 

his office door, citing the need for propriety and discretion during private conversations with 

his employees.  He presented cost information and spoke to the availability of funding for 

projects such as this. 

 

Mr. Davis asked how many similar projects would be requested if this was approved.  Mayor 

Haygood mentioned a few other improvement projects that had already been requested.   

The committee decided to make a decision on this issue at next month’s meeting. 

 

 

15



16



17



18



19



20



CITY OF DAPHNE Mayor Dane Haygood 

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MINUTES Councilwoman Tommie Conaway, District 1 

Time: 5:00 PM on December 16, 2013 Councilman John Lake, District 3 

Location: City Hall  Councilman Ron Scott, District 5       Councilman John Lake, District 3  

 Chairman - Councilman Robin LeJeune, District 6 

      

I. CALL TO ORDER 

 Meeting was called to order at 5:07 p.m. 

 Committee Members Present: Robin LeJeune (Chairman), Councilman John Lake, Councilman Ron 

Scott, Richard D. Johnson-Public Works Director, Michele T. Hanson-Administrative Assistant, 

Dorothy Morrison-Daphne Beautification Committee. 

 Others Present: Mike Hinson-Finance Director; Pat Rudicell, Councilman District 2. 
 

II. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION & CORRESPONDENCE 
A. Richard reviewed the Work Request Report for November 2013. Robin asked about the traffic 

signal calls. Richard reported that any traffic signal whether it’s one of our or the State’s, if 

there is a call, we will fix it or call the State and let them know. 

B. Vehicle/Equipment Maintenance Report for November 2013 was reviewed.  Robin asked 

about the $6,000 fire repair; Richard stated that this was for replacing the hydraulics for the 

ladder truck. 

C. Correspondence – No correspondence 

D. Public Participation – No one present to address the committee. 

 

III. OLD BUSINESS  

A. Minutes from November 18, 2013 meeting were reviewed. Motion by Councilman Lake, 

seconded by Councilman Scott to approve minutes.  Motion carried. 

B. Mosquito Report – No report 

C. Street Sweeper Reports – Richard stated the issue with the data collection should be fixed and 

we’ll have reports next month. Ron asked if the street sweeper could be run up near the hotels 

and dress that area up; Richard stated this was on the agenda for the supervisors meeting in 

the morning. 

 

IV. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Proposed Street Resurfacing for 2014 

Richard reviewed the plans for the Randall Avenue and the Park/Pollard Road resurfacing.  

We have 2 accounts (4 cent & 7cent gas tax funds) which can be used for roads. There are 

funds in the maintenance fund to fix/repair Park Drive/Pollard Road and to resurface Randall.  

Mayor recommended to use a combination of the maintenance fund and gas tax and start on 

these two projects. The goal is to have prices back before the Finance Committee meeting in 

January, then the first read would be the 3rd Monday in January and the 2nd read the first 

Monday in February and begin shortly after that. 

Motion by Councilman Scott, seconded by John Lake to favorably recommend to the 

Finance Committee to appropriate the funds for these two paving projects.  Motion 

carried. 
 

V. DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

A. Cade Contracting, LLC – Overdue Invoices ($4,125.00) 

This is the undeveloped phase of the Renaissance Center.  Phase 1 was the Eastern Shore 

Park, then the Renaissance phase is a totally different entity, but they have the same overlay 

district and the same ordinance that control them. One of the things involved in that 

development was they wanted landscaping done on the interstate, but the only way that 

ALDOT would allow it was if the city did the maintenance and care of the landscaping. A 

formula was created 9 years ago which estimated the yearly cost for the maintenance. This 

property owner took ownership 3 payment cycles ago and has yet to make a payment. The 

other tenants have paid their invoice regularly.  The Mayor has asked this committee to make 
21



a recommendation.  Richard asked that this committee recommend the City Attorney to write 

a letter requesting payment or at the very least that a lien be placed on the property to be 

settled if the property is sold. 

Motion by Councilman Scott, seconded by Councilman Lake to have the City Attorney 

draft a letter to Cade Contracting requesting payment and exercise any legal action that 

needs to be done to collect this payment.  Motion carried. 

 

VI. DAPHNE SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL AUTHORITY 

A. Monthly Equipment Use Report for November 2013 was reviewed.   

B. Monthly Recycle Tonnage Report (Tonnage Comparison) for November 2013 was reviewed, 

and the tonnage was done a little bit from last year. Goal for next year is to break 2000 tons 

and December should be a banner month and we should have no problem meeting our goal. 

C. Solid Waste New Customer Report for November 2013 was reviewed.  This month we added 

25 new customers this month, 20 residential and 5 commercial. He also reminded the 

committee that Jubilee Ridge will be adding over 100 new residential garbage accounts once it 

is finished.  

Ron stated he has seen our recycle trailers at Belforest and Prodisee Pantry.  Richard 

commented that most of Prodisee Pantry’s is cardboard and because of our recycle trailer 

being there, they have eliminated one of their dumpsters. Ron asked if we have extended the 

recycling trailer to Spanish Fort; Richard stated we have not, but would like to, however we 

don’t want to hinder areas from annexing into the City of Daphne. 

 

VII. MUSEUM COMMITTEE 

A. Minutes from November 11, 2013 meeting were reviewed.   

 

VIII. BEAUTIFICATION COMMITTEE 

A. Minutes from November 20, 2013 (Trim A Tree) meeting were reviewed.  Dorothy stated that 

the chain link fence at the hotels is looking much better; there are rocks again at 98 and I-10. 

Hoping to have pricing for the getting our greenhouses operational again, structurally it is 

good, just need siding and the heating units repaired.  The Season’s Greeting sign never stays 

lit for the whole season and it needs to be placed higher on the hill. Richard said that was 

being repaired today.  All the other decorations look fantastic!  The Oak Lodge building is 

looking bad and who could we contact to do something about it.  Richard asked Dorothy to 

contact Richard Merchant in the Building Inspections department.  Dorothy asked council 

members to get residents in their districts to join the committee.  

Richard asked the committee to think about the schedule for next year’s Christmas Open 

House and Parade.  Do we have it on the same day or separately like this year? He also wants 

to get all the churches and schools involved and have a float in the parade, especially those 

who have some type of music.  Daphne Utilities did an outstanding job decorating their 

facility. 

 

IX. ENVIRONMENTAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

A. Minutes from the November 18, 2013 were reviewed. 

 

X. ENGINEER’S REPORT 

A. No Report. Richard reported that LF phase 3 will shut down the week of Christmas, even 

though they are behind.  Bayfront Park will be paved the 2nd full week of January. 

 

XI. FUTURE BUSINESS 

A. Next Meeting for January 21, 2013. 

 

XII. ADJOURNMENT 

Meeting adjourned at 6:05 PM Motion made by Councilman Scott, seconded by Councilman Lake 

to adjourn the meeting.  Motion carried.  

22



District 1 
 

Dorothy Morrison, 
Chair 
Debbie Strahley 
 
District 4 
 

Selena Vaughn 
Tomasina Werner 
 
District 5 
 

David Dueitt 
Rebecca Trosclair 
Linda Williams 
 
District 6 
 

Elaine Maxime 
Hollie LeJeuune 
 
City Liaisons 
 

Marjorie Bellue 
Richard Johnson 
Dwayne Coley 
David McKelroy 
Denise Penry 
 

November 20, 2013 

  

Daphne Beautification Notes 
  

Present: Tomasina Werner, Denise Penry, Michele Hanson, Elaine Maxime, Chris 
Stanton, Margie Bellue, Dorothy Morrison 
  

Our Regular December meeting was held on Tree Decorating Day instead of the First 
Wednesday......The City Staff meeting was moved to today so Richard, David and the 
Mayor were unable to attend our meeting....... 
  

In the Holiday Spirit we rejoiced that ALDOT finally got the fence fixed in the area by 
the hotels ....we will ask Daphne Clean Up Crew to clean the debris that was left in-
cluding the orange plastic "stuff"..... we will keep this in house and not wait a year for 
the state to do it .......... 
  

Work request to clean up the debris by I-10 under Hwy 98 by our newly 
mowed area......... 
  

A good conversation was had about the Green Houses and Community Gardens to be 
ready by spring........ 
  

If we are to EVER have flowers in Daphne we need a working greenhouse for stag-
ing .......for want of a better term ......Chris will get numbers for plastic, heaters, irriga-
tion hopefully by Jan to get to Richard to bring back to the Beautification Committee in 
Feb.......we need numbers to make decisions.........to be ready for 
spring...........Margorie will need help .........where????? Does Faulkner or USA have 
Horticulture  classes that need practical experience ....an on the job training situation 
that could work for us both...........Details need to be known so decision can be 
made...........  
  

A Community Garden concept has been discussed several times with no decision 
made.........we need to check with the City Attorney about liability........ look for a place 
that would have easy access....then a plan.....but need detail for our Feb meet-
ing.......decision by Feb lets go or not............. 
  

Maxine is asking a lady to come to our Jan meeting to discuss Keep Daphne Beauti-
ful..........this is a nationwide program and again we are getting information to move us 
forward.....she will speak for about 15 minutes 

  

The meeting is Jan 8th.......  the 1st is the first Wed we will meet at City Hall in the 
Conference Room........please plan to attend............. 
  

Happy Thanksgiving.........................Merry Christmas .....................................Happy 
New Year  
  

D................  
  

23



DRAFT Meeting Minutes 
Monday, November 18, 2013 - 4:00 PM 

City of Daphne - Environmental Advisory Committee 
Daphne City Hall – Executive Boardroom 

 

1 
 

 
Call to order at 4:05 p.m.  
 
Attendees: B. Webb, C. Pinyerd, R. Johnson, A. Campbell, A. Hosey, J. Peterson, and E. 
Riser.  
 
Minutes reviewed for the August 26, 2013 meeting. A motion to approve the minutes was 
made and seconded. Minutes were adopted as distributed.  
 
Old Business 
 
a.  No EPM project updates were noted. 
 
b.  An update on the status of the tree ordinance was provided by R. Johnson. The ordinance is 
now in council.  
 
c.  A. Campbell questioned whether the EAC could officially (legally) handle illicit discharge 
appeals. Such appeals are currently handled by the council, but the membership often lacks 
the technical expertise needed to review and rule on them. There are potential legal issues as 
appeals must be reviewed and ruled upon by an established board, which the EAC is not. 
Further discussion on the matter will be tabled for future meetings as clarification from legal 
council is obtained. 
 
New Business 
 
a. An informal presentation on the residence times of Mobile Bay was provided by B. Webb. 
The projector was not operational at the time of the meeting so a formal presentation will be 
tabled for a future meeting. 
 
b. B. Webb distributed an information sheet for a recently funded NFWF project focused on 
D'Olive Watershed. The funding was awarded to Mobile Bay NEP for watershed restoration. 
This work will likely impact the City of Daphne. A. Campbell was involved in the original 
submission process and is working closely with Mobile Bay NEP on this matter. 
 
c. B. Webb provided brief comments about potential RESTORE Act opportunities and 
encouraged the EAC membership/leadership to start developing comprehensive ideas related 
to environmental restoration and/or economic development. The EAC may be an appropriate 
body to help guide the City in the development of projects and plans and the solicitation of 
stakeholder involvement. 
 
d. R. Johnson announced that the City was awarded a TAP grant for Gator Alley parking lot 
and step pool conveyance system. The SPCS will handle stormwater runoff from the Gator 
Alley parking lot as well as some quantity of dischrage from HWY 98. The derelict billboard will 
also be removed as part of this rehabilitation project. A. Campbell announced that there would 
be a meeting at City Hall on December 10, 2013 to describe the Joe's Branch project and 
NFWF funding of the D'Olive Watershed restoration. 
 
Adjourn A motion to adjourn was made and seconded at 4:55 pm. 
  

24



 

 

 

REPORT  

OF  

SPECIAL BOARDS 

25



DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

1705 MAIN STREET • DAPHNE, AL 

DECEMBER 4, 2013 • 5:30 P.M. 

 

COMMITTEE MINUTES 

 

1. Call To Order/Roll Call 

 

Casey Zito called the meeting to order at 5:39 p.m.. 

 

Members Present: Casey Zito, Doug Bailey, Dayna Oldham, Debbie Strahley, Ken Balme, 

Patricia Vanderpool 

 

Absent: Dorothy Morrison, Dayna Oldham, Pat Rudicell 

 

Also Present: Sarah Toulson, Recording Secretary, Tommie Conaway 

 

2. Approval of minutes:  

Motion: to approve the minutes from the October 24, 2013 meeting.  Moved by Dayna 

Oldham, second by Doug Bailey.  Carried unanimously. 

 

3. Treasurer’s Report: Doug Bailey 

 

Mr. Bailey gave the treasurer’s report, stating that the DRA currently had $91,289.11 after 

the inclusion of a $3.00 service charge.  Expenses included reimbursement to Dorothy 

Morrison for expenses incurred to finish the planter box project, lights for the planter boxes, 

and a reimbursement to Ken Balme for expenses incurred concerning the Jubilee Festival 

advertisement. 

 

Motion: to reimburse Dorothy Morrison for expenses incurred to place and fill the planter boxes.  

Moved by Dayna Oldham, second by Debbie Strahley.  Carried unanimously. 

 

Motion: to accept the treasurer’s report as amended.  Moved by Patricia Vanderpool, second 

by Dayna Oldham.  Carried unanimously. 

 

4. Update: Planter box project 

The committee discussed the planter box project and the possibility of extending the project to 

include a greater number of boxes for the downtown area.   

26



The Light Up Daphne event was discussed.  The committee commented positively on the new 

Christmas tree the DRA had bought for the City Hall front lawn.   

 

5. Update: DRA Website 

Ms. Zito reported that the committee would not be able to view progress on the DRA website as 

planned. 

6. Other business 

Update: Presentation to City Council 

Mr. Ken Balme reported on his presentation to the City Council regarding the DRA’s goals and 

future projects.  Councilwoman Conaway praised Ken’s efforts and noted that his presentation 

was well received by the Council. 

DRA Goals and Direction 

The Committee discussed potential goals and projects for the DRA, noting the following 

problems with the downtown area: 

- Lack of retail/real estate 

- Limited bay access 

- Lack of quality amenities on the Bay for meetings, receptions 

Ms. Vanderpool suggested that each member brainstorm ideas concerning goals and bring them 

to the next meeting. 

Meeting at Southern Napa 

The committee discussed holding a meeting at Southern Napa and informally decided to hold 

such a meeting during warmer weather. 

 Next meeting January 22nd 

The meeting was adjourned at 6:51 pm 

27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



 

 

 

REPORT  

OF  

OFFICERS 

39



40



 

 

 

RESOLUTIONS 

& 

ORDINANCES 

41



RESOLUTION 2014-01 

 

ACCEPTANCE OF RIGHT-OF-WAY LOCATED NORTH OF JOHNSON 

ROAD, SOUTH OF PROFIT DRIVE  

                             

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne has caused to be built a new 1350 linear 

foot 50-foot wide right of way more particularly described herein that is situated 

north of Johnson Road and south of Profit Drive; and,  

 

            WHEREAS, the City of Daphne Public Works Director certifies that all 

reports, as well as, all other related documents have been provided stating that said 

streets and storm water drainage have been installed in conformity with city 

standards; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama has 

received notice that the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne in its 

regularly scheduled meeting of December 19, 2013 reviewed the proposal for 

acceptance of said right-of-way and granted favorable recommendation for the 

acceptance of the same; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne believes it is in the 

best interest of the citizens of the City for the City to accept said permanent right-

of-way; and, 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND 

CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, that the below described 

permanent right-of-way located south of Profit Drive and north of Johnson Road is 

hereby accepted by the City of Daphne, Alabama as a City right-of-way for public 

use and maintenance: 

 

 

DESCRIPTION OF RIGHT-OF-WAY 

 

BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 14 OF DAPHNE BUSINESS PARK, 

UNIT 2, AS RECORDED ON SLIDE 1995-B IN THE OFFICE OF THE JUDGE OF 

PROBATE FOR BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89°45'06" 

EAST A DISTANCE OF 47.28 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 01°44'53" WEST A 

DISTANCE OF 405.30 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 88°15'07" EAST A DISTANCE OF 

29.00 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 01°44'53" WEST A DISTANCE OF 26.54 FEET; 

THENCE RUN SOUTH 13°45'31" WEST A DISTANCE OF 139.83 FEET; THENCE RUN 

SOUTHERLY ALONG A NON-TANGENT CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS 

OF 1030.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 367.42 FEET, A CHORD BEARING SOUTH 

12°45'27" WEST, AND A CHORD DISTANCE OF 365.48 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 

22°58'37" WEST A DISTANCE OF 24.15 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTHERLY ALONG A 

NON-TANGENT CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A RADIUS OF 557.45 FEET, AN ARC 

LENGTH OF 197.03 FEET, A CHORD BEARING SOUTH 12°29'09" WEST, AND A 

42



CHORD DISTANCE OF 196.01 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 4 OF 

DAPHMONT SUBDIVISION, UNIT 3, AS RECORDED ON SLIDE 608-B IN THE OFFICE 

OF THE JUDGE OF PROBATE FOR BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA; THENCE RUN 

NORTH 89°43'59" WEST A DISTANCE OF 59.80 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER 

OF LOT 3 OF SAID DAPHMONT SUBDIVISION UNIT; THENCE RUN NORTHERLY 

ALONG A NON-TANGENT CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 610.27 

FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 220.79 FEET, A CHORD BEARING NORTH 12°20'28" EAST, 

AND A CHORD DISTANCE OF 219.59 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 22°58'37" EAST A 

DISTANCE OF 24.15 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTHERLY ALONG A CURVE TO THE 

LEFT HAVING A RADIUS OF 970.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 359.40 FEET, A 

CHORD BEARING NORTH 12°21'45" EAST, AND A CHORD DISTANCE OF 357.34 FEET; 

THENCE RUN NORTH 88°15'07" WEST A DISTANCE OF 21.50 FEET; THENCE RUN 

NORTH 01°44'53" EAST A DISTANCE OF 16.82 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 13°08'50" 

EAST A DISTANCE OF 108.78 FEET;  THENCE RUN NORTH 01°44'53" EAST A 

DISTANCE OF 429.38 FEET, TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 14, 

DAPHNE BUSINESS PARK; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89°45'23" EAST ALONG SAID 

SOUTH LINE OF LOT 14 A DISTANCE OF 12.74 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; 

SAID DESCRIBED RIGHT-OF-WAY CONTAINING 1.69 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 

 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA ON THIS THE ________ DAY OF JANUARY 2014. 
 

 THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

AN ALABAMA MUNICIPAL 

CORPORATION 

  

  

 RANDY FRY, 

 COUNCIL PRESIDENT 

 DATE AND TIME SIGNED 

  

  

 DANE HAYGOOD, 
 MAYOR 

 DATE AND TIME SIGNED: 

ATTEST  

  

  

REBECCA A. HAYES, 

CITY CLERK 

 

 

 

43



44



45



46



47



48



49


	01.06.2014 Numbered Agenda
	Council Packet
	Council Packet
	Council Packet
	Agenda
	B & P Minutes - 12-02-13
	Public Safety Minutes
	2013-12-16 PWC Mtg Minutes
	EAC Minutes 11-18-2013
	2013-11-20 Beautification Mtg Minutes
	DRA Minutes _ Revised
	Planning Commission minutes
	Special Events Permit - SEEDS Mama Mia
	Res 2014-01 Profit Drive ROW
	backup to 2014-01

	Report of Officers
	Report of Special Boards
	Report of Standing Committees
	Resolutions & Ordinances
	ROLL CALL

	December 16 2013 Council Minutes
	James Matthews Cert of Appreciation




